
Agenda
Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Monday, 27 January 2020, 10.00 am
County Hall, Worcester
All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate

Worcestershire County Council

This document can be provided in alternative formats such as Large Print, an audio recording or 
Braille; it can also be emailed as a Microsoft Word attachment. Please contact Democratic 

Services on telephone number 01905 844965 or by emailing 
democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk

Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk

mailto:democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk


DISCLOSING INTERESTS

There are now 2 types of interests:
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests'

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)?

 Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain 
 Sponsorship by a 3rd party of your member or election expenses
 Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 

you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares
 Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer)
 Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 

share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire.

      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you

WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI?
 Register it within 28 days and 
 Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting 

- you must not participate and you must withdraw.
      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'?
 No need to register them but
 You must declare them at a particular meeting where:

 You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have 
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion.

WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY?
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest.

DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI?
Not normally. You must withdraw only if it:

 affects your pecuniary interests OR 
relates to a planning or regulatory matter

 AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

DON'T FORGET
 If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 

and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient   
 Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda 

- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little
 Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 

referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years

  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases.

Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f



Agenda produced and published by the Assistant Director for Legal and Governance, County Hall, Spetchley 
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP. To obtain further information or hard copies of this agenda, please contact 
Emma James/Jo Weston 01905 844965,email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 

All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website 
websitehttp://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees

Date of Issue: Thursday, 16 January 2020

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Monday, 27 January 2020, 10.00 am, Council Chamber

Membership

Worcestershire County Council Mr P A Tuthill (Chairman), Ms P Agar, Mr G R Brookes, 
Mr P Grove, Prof J W Raine, Mrs M A Rayner, 
Mr C Rogers, Mr A Stafford and Mr C B Taylor

District Councils Mr M Chalk, Redditch District Council
Ms C Edginton-White, Wyre Forest District Council
Mr J Gallagher, Malvern Hills District Council
Mr M Johnson, Worcester City Council
Mrs F Smith, Wychavon District Council
Mrs J Till, Bromsgrove District Council

Agenda
Item No Subject Page No

1 Apologies and Welcome

2 Declarations of Interest and of any Party Whip

3 Public Participation
Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Assistant 
Director for Legal and Governance in writing or by email indicating the 
nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am 
on the working day before the meeting (in this case 24 January 2020). 
Enquiries can be made through the telephone number/email address 
below.

4 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting
Previously circulated

5 Sustainable Transformation Partnership and the NHS Long Term 
Plan

1 - 2

6 Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust Clinical Services 
Strategy - Update

3 - 42

7 Budget Scrutiny: In-Year Performance and Draft 2020/21 Budget 
and Medium Term Financial Plan Update 2020-22 for Public Health

43 - 62

8 Health Overview and Scrutiny Round-up 63 - 64

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees


Item No Subject Page No

9 Work Programme 2019/20 65 - 68



AGENDA ITEM 5
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JANUARY 2020

SUSTAINABLE TRANSFORMATION PARTNERSHIP AND 
THE NHS LONG TERM PLAN

Summary

1. The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) is to receive an update on 
the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Sustainable Transformation Partnership (STP) 
and the NHS Long Term Plan.

2. Representatives involved in leading the development of Worcestershire's STP and 
the NHS Long Term Plan have been invited to the meeting, including from 
Worcestershire's Clinical Commissioning Groups and Worcestershire Health and 
Care Trust.

Background

3. The HOSC has requested regular updates on the STP as part of its work 
programme.

4. STPs were created to bring local health and care leaders together to plan around 
the long-term needs of local communities.  At its meeting on 5 March 2019, the 
HOSC was briefed about what the NHS Long Term Plan would mean for 
Worcestershire residents and a record of this discussion can be found here

5. The Long-term Plan sets out the aim that every part of England will be covered by 
an integrated care system by 2021, replacing STPs but building on their work to date.

6. As reported to the HOSC during the 5 March discussion, the five main themes of 
the Long Term Plan are:

 a new service model for the 21st century
 reducing pressure on emergency hospital services
 people will get more control over their own health and personalised care 

when they needed it
 digitally-enabled primary and outpatient care will go mainstream across 

the NHS
 local NHS organisations will increasingly focus on population health, 

moving to Integrated Care Systems everywhere.

7. The HOSC has also received updates on specific STP workstreams, including 
Local Maternity Systems and Mental Health.

Page 1

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g3024/Printed%20minutes%2005th-Mar-2019%2013.30%20Health%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/


Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

Purpose of Meeting

8. HOSC Members are invited to consider the information on progression of the STP 
and the Long-term Plan and to agree:

 whether any further information is required
 whether any further scrutiny work is required at this stage

9. In doing so, HOSC members may want to reflect on the following areas:
 What is progressing well and what changes will the public see?
 What impact has there been for patients for services which have moved/are 

moving to the locality team model? 
 What are the areas of challenge?
 Workforce challenges
 Governance of integrated care systems – who is accountable and how 

transparent are the governance arrangements?
 Has health and social care workforce recruitment and retention improved? 

Supporting Information

Appendix 1 – Presentation slides (to follow)

Specific Contact Points for this Report
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers: 01905 844964 / 844965
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of 
this report: 

 Agenda and Minutes of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 5 March 
2019 and 29 January 2018 – available on the website here

 NHS England – information of the Long Term Plan is available on the website: 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-term-plan/

 Web page for STP https://www.hacw.nhs.uk/sustainability-and-transformation-
partnership 

Page 2

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=141
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-term-plan/
https://www.hacw.nhs.uk/sustainability-and-transformation-partnership
https://www.hacw.nhs.uk/sustainability-and-transformation-partnership


AGENDA ITEM 6
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JANUARY 2020

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST 
CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY - UPDATE

Summary

1. The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) is to receive an update 
from representatives of Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust (the Trust) on the 
organisation’s new Clinical Services Strategy.

2. The Trust’s Board has now approved the Strategy, and the HOSC will be updated 
on how the aims of the Strategy will be taken forward.

3. Representatives from the Trust will be present at the meeting.

Background

4. HOSC members will be aware of the purpose and development of the Clinical 
Strategy from its earlier discussion on 8 October 2019 with the Trust’s Chief 
Executive. A link to the Minutes of this discussion can be found in the background 
papers. HOSC members were briefed about the purpose of the Strategy, including 
the context, aims, themes and priorities.  The Committee was also briefed about how 
the Strategy was being developed, including consultation with clinical staff, 
stakeholders and patient groups.

5. The aim of the Strategy was set out as:

 Detailed plans to deliver further immediate improvements to quality, safety 
and efficiency of services

 An ambitious vision of what local hospital services could and should look like 
in five years’ time

 An outline of how that vision could become a reality
 A commitment to ensuring that the Trust’s hospitals sit at the heart of a 

network of joined up, high quality, sustainable health and care services that 
meet the changing needs of people in our local communities now and in the 
future

 A guide to how the Trust will ensure that its strategy aligns with, and supports, 
key local and national health and care policies and plans - including those set 
out by the national NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) and the Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP).

6. Many of the drivers for change will already be well known to HOSC Members and 
are consistent with challenges faced by many parts of the NHS, including: more 
people living longer; more patients living for many years with complex and/or multiple 
long term health conditions; a shortage of doctors and nurses, particularly in some 

Page 3



Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

highly specialised areas; a continuing financial challenge, with additional pressure 
coming from the rapid development of new treatments, techniques and medicines.

7. Envisaged key priorities for the Strategy included:
 The need to develop a comprehensive and responsive urgent and emergency 

care system
 A clear and substantial role for the Trust’s hospitals - maximising capacity to 

deliver safe and responsive services on a countywide footprint
 Integrated care

8. HOSC members now have the opportunity to hear how the Strategy has been 
finalised, including how feedback from staff and stakeholders and the public has been 
taken on board. HOSC members will also be keen to know how the aims of the 
Strategy will now be taken forward to shape services.

Purpose of Meeting

9. HOSC Members are invited to:
 consider and comment on the information provided about the newly approved 

Clinical Strategy; and
 determine whether any further information is required at this stage.

Supporting Information 

Appendix 1 – Acute Clinical Services Strategy 
Appendix 2 - Presentation Slides

Specific Contact Points for this Report
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers: 01905 844964 / 844965
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Donna Wark, Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust
Email: d.wark@nhs.net (Donna Wark, Executive PA)

Background Papers
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance ) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of 
this report:

 Agenda and Minutes of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 8 
October 2019 – available on the website here

Page 4

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:d.wark@nhs.net
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=3369&Ver=4


Our Clinical Services Strategy  
to 2025

Page 5



2

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

Contents

1. Introducing our clinical services strategy 3

2. The strategic context

• The NHS Long Term Plan
• Herefordshire and Worcestershire STP
• The local population and its health needs
• About our Trust
• Putting Patients First

4

3. Our clinical services strategy

• Our four imperatives
• Our three pillars

10

4. Our clinical services strategy at a glance 15

5. Our strategy plans and milestones:

• Integrated care
• Urgent and emergency care
• Acute and specialist planned care

16

6. Enabling the clinical services strategy through our underpinning 
strategic plans

• People, culture & OD 
• Quality and service improvement 
• Research and innovation 
• Business intelligence
• Digital
• Partnerships, communications and engagement
• Finance
• Estates 
• Leadership and Governance

20

7. Conclusion 22

Page 6



3

1. Introducing our clinical services strategy

We are delighted to publish our 
clinical services strategy for the 
next five years.

It comes at a challenging time for the NHS. The 
number of people who attend hospital is growing 
when it is apparent that they could be seen more 
appropriately, or just as appropriately, by other 
providers. The number of patients who arrive in 
hospital by ambulance and are discharged the 
same day suggests that we have an opportunity to 
build on our existing services to find alternatives in 
a community setting.

It comes at a time of change for the NHS. The 
NHS Long Term Plan was published in January 
2019, which reinforces our priorities for action 
as part of the Herefordshire and Worcestershire 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership.

It comes at an exciting time for our trust. As the 
new leadership team at the head of an evolving 
board, we foresee a positive future for our 
organisation. We can make better use of our 
hospital sites, our beds, theatres, appointment 
slots and other capacity. We will address the 
staffing challenges that affect our ability to 
deliver sustainable services and implement more, 
best practice ways of working. We will work 
with new and existing partners to provide the 
most effective services as close as possible to our 
patients’ homes. We will deliver better experience, 
better outcomes, at lower cost, and in a way that 
reduces health inequalities.

We have developed our strategy with energy and 
passion. More than 150 senior staff attended the 
initial strategy events, with many more involved 
within individual specialties as the strategies were 
drafted. They produced 42 specialty and support 
service strategies, which have informed this single, 
overarching document.

We have engaged with our partners at an event 
in Droitwich and at STP and Alliance meetings, 
and with the public at an event in Worcester. We 
presented our emerging strategy, listened and 
responded to immediate feedback. Throughout 
the period we have engaged on social media 
through #PuttingPatientsFirst and #WAHT2025.

In the coming years we will continue to put 
patients first as Worcestershire’s lead for the 
integration of acute and specialist care. 

Thank you for your interest.

      

Sir David Nicholson
Chairman

Matthew Hopkins
Chief Executive

Page 7



4

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

2. The strategic context

The NHS Long Term Plan 

The Long Term Plan, which was published in 
January 2019, has at its centre the need to 
accelerate the redesign of patient care to future-
proof the NHS for the decade ahead. 

The Long Term Plan shifts the focus from 
organisation to system, from provider to place, 
from process targets to population health 
outcomes, from competition to collaboration and 
integration. Taking this to its ultimate conclusion, 
over the life of this clinical services, strategy we 
will be working in a local integrated care system.  

This is a significant paradigm change 
and one which we shall fully embrace 
through our clinical services strategy.

There are four main themes within the Long 
Term Plan, which our strategy for clinical services 
will address:

 T The development of out of hospital care 

 T A reduction in the pressure on emergency  
 hospital services

 T Delivery of high quality, person-centred care  
 with improved outcomes

 T Prevention of poor health and reduction in  
 health inequalities.

The Plan is supported by a funding path for the 
NHS, averaging 3.4% a year over the next five 
years, compared with 2% a year over the past 
five years. Whilst this growth is welcome, the 
scale of delivery within the Plan is substantial and 
funding alone is no longer the rate limiting factor 
for service improvement – rather the critical 
challenge of workforce which is affecting all 
parts of the NHS. 

The interim NHS People Plan was published in 
June 2019. This sets out the immediate action 
needed across five domains to start to tackle the 
serious workforce issues:

 T Making the NHS the best place to work

 T Improving NHS leadership culture

 T Addressing workforce shortages

 T Delivering 21st century care

 T Developing a new operating model   
 for workforce.

To deliver 21st century care, the People Plan 
proposes:

 T A transformed workforce with a more varied  
 and richer skill mix, new types of roles and  
 different ways of working

 T The scaling up of new roles via multi-  
 professional credentialing and more effective  
 use of the apprenticeship levy

 T Using technology to support better   
 deployment of staff time and increase   
 productivity.

To enable this clinical services strategy, 
and in line with the NHS People Plan, 
we will transform our approach to a 
sustainable workforce underpinned by 
our ambitious digital strategy.

Herefordshire and Worcestershire STP

These broad aims of the NHS Long Term plan are 
taken forward through our local Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership. 

Page 8



5

Our STP is one of the largest in terms of 
geography, covering 1,500 square miles, but one 
of the smallest in terms of population, covering 
about 780,000 people. 

We are clear that the challenges that we face in 
health and social care cannot be managed by 
organisations working alone and we fully support 
the STP’s vision:

Local people will live well in a supportive 
community with joined up care, 
underpinned by specialist expertise and 
delivered in the best place by the most 
appropriate people.

The STP is complemented by World Class 
Worcestershire, our Local Enterprise Partnership’s 
ten-year plan for jobs, growth and the economy. 
The aim is to bring 25,000 new jobs and an extra 
£2.9 billion into the local economy by 2025.

The county has significantly lower rates of 
entrepreneurship than the rest of the country, and 
growth rates have plummeted in recent years. 
Average annual earnings are 15% worse than 
the country. 

Here, we have a major role to play in support of the 
economic benefits of STEM sectors, where science, 
technology, engineering and mathematics are key.

The local population and its 
health needs

Worcestershire in 2019 has an estimated 
population of 592,000, with an expected growth 
rate of 5.8% by 2033. During the same period, 
the population aged 65 years and over is projected 
to increase by 28%.

The gap in life expectancy between less 
deprived and more deprived areas of the 
county is 7.8 years. The county ranks 55th out 
of 150 authorities nationally for premature 
mortality. Out of 15 local authorities with similar 

socioeconomic characteristics, Worcestershire is 
worse than average for deaths in the under 75s 
from colorectal cancer, stroke and liver disease. 
It ranks particularly poorly at 14th for premature 
mortality due to stroke.  

Several outcomes for children and young people 
are below the national average. Since 2012 
infant mortality in Worcestershire had increased 
despite a national decrease during the same 
period. Although this decline has been reversed, 
the rate remains above the England average. 
23% of reception class children are obese or 
overweight; and rates for alcohol admission in 
the under 18s, breast feeding initiation rates, low 
birth weight statistics and teenage conceptions 
are all worse than the comparator group.

There are a few important indicators for the 
adult population. Two thirds of Worcestershire 
residents are overweight or obese, 27% of the 
drinking population consume at higher risk levels, 
17% of adults are smokers and 25% are inactive. 

The health and care system is the largest 
employer in the county and we have the 
capability to lead the way in changing 
risky behaviours within the population 
through a variety of touchpoints and by 
making ‘every contact count’.

The Long Term Plan calculated that across the 
country, patients with long term conditions 
accounted for 50% of GP appointments, 64% of 
outpatients and over 70% of inpatient bed days. 

In Worcestershire, our ageing population will 
continue to bring increased numbers of patients 
with frailty and people with multiple comorbidities. 
Frailty is a syndrome that combines the effect of 
natural ageing with the outcomes of long term 
conditions, loss of fitness and reserve.  

An ageing population will also lead to an 
increased incidence of life limiting conditions such 
as cancer and organ failure. 

Page 9



6

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

Proximity to death is a significant determinant of 
the frequency and intensity of healthcare use and 
we know that too many patients spend the last 
days and months of their life in hospital against 
their express wishes. 

Through our clinical services strategy 
we will focus our work with partners on 
these significant challenges to health 
and to the sustainability of our local 
healthcare system.

About our Trust

We are a large acute and specialised hospital trust 
that provides a range of services to the residents 
of Worcestershire and more specialised services to 
a larger population in Herefordshire and beyond. 

We operate hospital-based services from three 
sites in Kidderminster, Redditch and Worcester.

Last year (2018/19) we supported:

 T 156,160 A&E attendances
 T 152,712 inpatient episodes
 T 641,486 outpatient appointments
 T 5,261 births.

We employ nearly 6,000 people and around 800 
local people volunteer with us. We have an annual 
turnover of over £400 million. 

Despite annual growth in funding, investment in 
healthcare in Worcestershire has not kept pace 
with demand and Worcestershire CCG is still 
someway distant from its target funding allocation 
for expenditure on healthcare. In 2019/20 the 
distance from target is - 4.7% and by end of the 
new funding period, in 2023/24, there will still be 
a gap of – 3.4%.

We have delivered more activity year on year 
but have recorded a substantial and increasing 
financial deficit for the past three financial 
years. We continue to incur excessive premium 

costs from poor patient flow and the temporary 
workforce needed to support extra capacity 
for patient care, as well as vacancies within the 
existing establishment.

Paradoxically, relative lack of investment in local 
acute healthcare has led to a significant tranche 
of general acute activity being sent outside of the 
county to alternative providers to meet waiting 
time standards.  

Our clinical services strategy will allow 
us to right size our services and our 
workforce and redress the current 
imbalance between acute specialist care 
and sub - acute care delivered from 
our hospitals.

The Trust entered quality special measures in 
December 2015 following an overall rating of 
Inadequate by the CQC inspection team that 
found significant issues with the quality and safety 
of patient care at the Trust. 

After four years of intensive focus on the issues 
and concerns by our teams, we have lifted our 
rating to Requires Improvement. 

CQC Inspection Area Ratings  
(Latest report published on September 20th 2019)

SAFE Requires Improvement

EFFECTIVE Good

CARING Good

RESPONSIVE Requires Improvement

WELL-LED Requires Improvement

We have taken a hugely important step forward. 
We know we have a lot more to do, but these 
improved ratings are a clear and very encouraging 
sign that our efforts are paying off. 

Page 10



7

Through our clinical services strategy, 
we will put in place plans that will 
support continuous improvement and 
sustainability to the quality and safety 
of services.

Operational performance and the achievement 
on NHS Constitutional Standards remains a  
significant issue for the Trust. We are amongst the 
worst performing systems for A&E performance. 
Too many patients are waiting too long for the 
care they need - as an emergency or on a planned 
care pathway and access to care must improve.

Our clinical services strategy must  
unlock the systemic issues that are 
the root cause of our access and 
performance problems and dramatically 
improve the responsiveness of the 
services we provide.

Putting Patients First

In April 2019 year our board launched Putting 
Patients First, the 5- year vision and strategy for 
the next phase for our organisation.

This is shown in our pyramid on page 8.

Putting Patients First is based on partnership,  
with patients at the heart of all we do. 

Our vision is:

Working in partnership to provide the best 
healthcare for our communities, leading 
and supporting our teams to move 4ward.

We propose a broad range of partnerships in our 
clinical service strategy, from individual patients 
and public and patient representatives to a variety 
of partner organisations and we need to embrace 
partnership on every level. 

Our strategy must also support delivery of each of 
our strategic objectives:

Best services for local people 
We will develop and design our services with 
patients for patients. We will work actively with 
our partners to build the best sustainable services 
our population. 

Best experience of care and best outcomes 
for our patients 
We will ensure that the care our patients receive 
is safe, clinically excellent, compassionate and 
exemplar of positive patient experience. 

Best use of resources 
We will ensure that services – now and in the 
future – meet the highest possible standards 
within resources, for the benefit of our patients 
and the wider system.

Best people 
We will invest in our people to ensure that we, 
develop, recruit and retain the right staff with 
the right skills that care about and take pride in 
putting patients first.

These objectives are underpinned by our  
4ward signature behaviours which codify our 
culture, the way we relate to each other, our 
patients and partners:

Do what we say we will do

No delays, every day

We listen, we learn, we lead

Work together, celebrate together

Page 11



8

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

In the near future we will introduce a single improvement methodology to support both the continuous 
incremental improvement we need to make as well as the transformation required in the way we deliver 
services to realise our strategy and its overall ambition. 

Our Organisation Pyramid

Page 12



9

As we have developed our clinical services 
strategy, we have demonstrated our commitment 
to listen to and respond to our patients, staff 
and partners. 

Between June and September 2019, we have:

 T Engaged with clinical colleagues in 42   
 specialties and support specialties.

 T Facilitated discussions between divisional   
 leadership teams to discuss dependencies   
 between services and our hospital sites 

 T Hosted a planning conference, attended   
 by 70 partners from within the health and  
 care system.

 T Organised a ‘market place’ event attended by  
 over 100 members of staff.

 T Held an engagement event attended by more  
 than 40 patients and patient representatives.

When asked to describe what better services 
might look and feel like in the future, there 
was consensus from our patients and public 
representatives about services which:

 T Were more joined up 

 T Were easier for patients to access and find  
 their way around 

 T Provided better support for choice, decision  
 making, prevention and self-care 

 T Were as individual/responsive to a patient’s  
 needs as possible, taking account of any   
 protected characteristics, social needs and  
 demographic background.

Our partnership with patients is 
very important to us and we are 
committed to being guided by patients 
in the development and delivery 
of better services. 

Page 13



10

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

3. Our clinical services strategy

From our work with our specialty teams, and our 
stakeholders we have identified three key areas of 
activity that shape our future:

 T End to end integrated care 

 T Comprehensive and responsive urgent  
 and emergency care 

 T High quality, dependable acute and specialist  
 planned care 

These strategy pillars are explained in more 
detail below.

We have also identified four imperatives for our 
clinical services strategy which are fully supported 
by our strategy pillars:

 T Care for people living with frailty;

 T Care at end of life;

 T Cancer care, and;

 T Access to services 

Access to services is a cross cutting theme 
throughout our clinical services strategy.

Firstly, our philosophy is best care in the right 
setting. Patients will receive their care locally 
where possible, centrally within the county where 
necessary, and via a specialist provider outside the 
county where most appropriate. 

Secondly, digital technology will allow people 
to access information and services online, 
immediately, in their own homes, places of work 
and leisure. 

Thirdly we will ensure the right capacity in the 
right place to ensure our planned care services are 
responsive and timely.

The initial phase of our clinical services strategy 
will support improvement in access and outcomes 
for our patients and in its later phases our services 
will evolve to support improvement in overall 
population health and outcomes.

Integrated Care  

Hospital without walls 

In future it is the local system that is dominant and 
we will take a leading role in integrating health 
and care in Worcestershire. 

We will work with all our partners to manage 
demand and ensure that the right care is delivered 
in a place that makes most sense for patients and 
the system. 

Worcestershire 
Acute Hospitals

Patients 
as partners 

in care 

Working with 
Secondary Care 
Providers within 
and across STPs

Improving 
Population 

Health

Integrating 
services 

with Primary 
& Community 

Care

Partnering 
with 

Tertiary Care

Extending the 
role of the Public 

Sector and 
Third Sector

Page 14



11

Priority pathways for integrated care:

We will work intensively with our partners in 
Worcestershire to move as much of the care for 
people with a long term health condition such 
as diabetes, respiratory or cardiovascular disease, 
into the community and closer to where they live. 

The prevalence of frailty is increasing in 
Worcestershire. We will outreach to work with 
partners, aligned with Worcestershire’s Integrated 
Care of Older People Strategy ICOPE strategy, to 
delay or prevent onset of frailty and ensure early 
onset of frailty is recognised and managed.  
 
People living with frailty are vulnerable to 
hospital acquired functional decline. Within 
our hospitals, we will adopt a frailty sensitive 
approach making assessment of frailty a standard 
part of every patient’s admission and inreach to 
ensure frailty management is an integral part of 
their acute care. 

We have a very limited frailty specialist workforce 
in Worcestershire. We already have experienced 
GPs supporting our acute frailty service, and in 
light of the scarcity of specialist frailty resource, 
there is an urgent need to develop a new, larger 
integrated workforce to support our strategy for 
better more integrated care for older people. 

Often people die in hospital, even when a plan of 
care indicates their preference is to die at home 
or in a hospice. To respect patients’ choices, 
we will work with partners to increase the 
proportion of people identified as being in the 
last year of life so we can work as a system to 
deliver personalised care. Here the social sector 
(charitable and voluntary) has a specific and 
expert role to play.

Appropriate sharing of patient information is 
essential to our ambitions to integrate service 
delivery. We will work with partners across the 
STP to create the appropriate platforms and 
policies for information sharing and improved 
patient care.  

Digital solutions will also enable more virtual care 
such as e-consultations and remote monitoring 
to support care closer to home.

As a partner in the Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire STP, we will maintain and ensure 
that we can sustain our current and future 
STP responsibilities as a partner in acute care 
pathways with Wye Valley NHS Trust. 

Population health management and 
integrated care 

The NHS Long Term plan proposes the 
deployment of population health management 
to understand the areas of greatest health need 
nationally and locally and ultimately to match 
NHS services to meet them in an integrated 
system model. 

This will mean allocating and investing resources 
more wisely to optimise the health and wellbeing 
for the whole population for which the health 
and social care system is responsible, and for us 
it means that our focus will no longer be solely 
on ill health.

As population health management and our 
integrated care system develops, we will lead 
the way in ensuring that all our services, both at 
the ‘front line’ and in the’ back office’ continue 
to evolve to ensure delivery the best health 
outcomes for the local population. 

Urgent & Emergency Care 

Our role in the system and how we will 
organise it

We will continue to have emergency 
departments at our hospitals in Worcester (all 
age) and Redditch (adults), which will be led by 
consultants, open 24 hours a day, seven days a 
week, with full resuscitation facilities. 

Page 15



12

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

We will retain our minor injuries unit at 
Kidderminster Hospital and Treatment Centre. 

We realise that we have more work to do to 
develop our service and staffing models at 
our front doors to sustain two emergency 
departments and to support comprehensive same 
day emergency care. 

Our medical staffing model also needs to evolve. 
We need to increase the intensity of senior 
medial input at the Alexandra Hospital, and 
across both acute sites we need to meet the 
challenge around a greater proportion of people 
needing hospital care that present with multiple 
morbidities. 

We are already supported at the ED front 
doors by colleagues from a range of partner 
organisations however there is more we can put 
in place to ensure that patients are directed to 
the best service to meet their needs.

We fully expect that there will be more and 
different urgent are provision in the local system 
and growth in digital access and, on behalf of 
our partners, we will look to markedly simplify 
access to urgent and emergency care across 
Worcestershire and reduce the pressure on 
emergency hospital services.  

We must do more to respond to the needs of our 
younger patients. We have plans for a paediatric 
assessment unit (PAU) at Worcestershire Royal 
Hospital and, by 2025, we are almost certain 
to be treating sufficient numbers of children to 
warrant a paediatric emergency department, as 
recommended by the Royal Colleges. 

We will learn from best practice elsewhere, speak 
to experts in the field, and consider all options, 
including an extended role for the PAU.

Acute and Specialist Planned Care
Clear roles for our three hospital sites

We are not starting from a blank sheet of paper. In 
2017 the Future of Acute Services in Worcestershire 
programme (FoAHSW) concluded and the clinical 
model was approved. As a result all hospital births, 
inpatient children’s services and emergency surgery 
were centralised away from the Alexandra Hospital 
Redditch to the Worcestershire Royal Hospital site. 

The plans also proposed moving most planned 
orthopaedic surgery from the Worcester to the 
Redditch site, along with breast and other planned 
surgery. More ambulatory care was to move from 
Worcester to Redditch and more day case and short 
stay surgery to Kidderminster.

Due to quality and sustainability concerns the 
majority of the service changes were made under 
temporary emergency provisions with the net result 
that the migration of services towards the WRH site 
was not fully supported by the equal and opposite 
move of services off the site as planned.

There remains a cultural challenge to the delivery 
of countywide services that this clinical services 
strategy must address. In doing so, working across 
sites will become the normal way of working for 
our teams and we will level up to the standards and 
outcomes of the best.

Despite the service moves having already taken 
place, the agreed capital funding for the capacity 
development required at both the Worcester 
and Redditch sites is subject to the finalisation 
this financial year of the full capital business case 
(although some schemes at the WRH site have 
advanced already due to increased pressure from 
unavoidable service centralisation). 

Going forward we will not close any of our existing 
three sites however there may be the need for 
further rationalisation of service delivery to remove 
unnecessary duplicate costs and staffing and 
support countywide service delivery from any one 
particular site. 

Page 16



13

How we will deliver services from our  
three sites:

Alexandra Hospital Redditch  
– Local Acute Hospital

 T Adult emergency department

 T Adult acute medical services

 T Centre for planned surgery and  
 ambulatory trauma

 T Diagnostic and other clinical support services 

 T Outpatient – based services

Kidderminster Treatment Centre 

 T Minor Injuries Unit

 T Centre for day case and short stay surgery

 T Diagnostic centre 

 T Outpatient – based services 

Worcestershire Royal Hospital 
– Major Acute Hospital

 T All age emergency department

 T All age acute medical services

 T Hyper-acute STP services

 T Major and emergency surgery centre

 T Inpatient trauma unit

 T Consultant – led maternity and neonatal care

 T Inpatient children and young people’s care

 T Radiotherapy centre

 T Diagnostic and other clinical support services

 T Outpatient – based services

Outpatients will be seen on all three hospital sites. 

In 2018/19 we provided 276,000 first outpatient 
appointments and 348,000 follow up outpatients, 
with those numbers predicted to rise to 292,000 
and 370,000 respectively by 2023. 

We must work to reduce these numbers, but 
we must also decide, where continuing care 
is required, either to deliver it differently or to 
partner with general practice to allow ongoing 
care to be managed in the community. 

Outpatient appointments need not be led by 
a hospital consultant and, with today’s digital 
advances, need not be face-to-face and we will 
increase the number of consultations that are 
delivered digitally by our teams.

Cancer and other specialised services  

We are responsible for a broader range of 
specialist care than would typically be expected 
in a district general hospital. We need to consider 
the optimum management of that specialist care 
in the future and our role is not always to deliver 
that care directly. 

KIDDERMINSTER

WORCESTER

REDDITCH

Page 17



14

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

We already deliver some of the largest cancer 
services locally and nationally, with excellent 
outcomes for our patients. However, we 
recognise that sometimes we will need to 
partner with another secondary or tertiary care 
provider to ensure enough activity and expertise 
for safe care, as required by national cancer 
service specifications and guidance and other 
recommendations. 

This might mean a move to a single provider 
partner or maintenance of existing relationships. 
Our decision will be driven by what will deliver the 
best outcomes for patients. 

By working in partnership with other more 
specialist provider(s), we will ensure that the 
residents of Worcestershire can access all cancer 
services including those that are more specialised, 
delivered as local to people as possible, to 
the highest standard of care and securing the 
best outcomes.

This relationship should also support the delivery 
of other more specialised services locally. 

Page 18



15

Personalised, 
more anticiaptory 

INTEGRATED CARE for 
people living with a long 
term condition or frailty 

and at end of life.

Easily accessible, 
comprehensive,  

co-ordinated URGENT  
& EMERGENCY CARE.

High quality, dependable  
ACUTE, SPECIALIST & 

CANCER CARE delivered 
in partnership from local 

centres of excellence.

Faster ACCESS to more responsive services 
ACCESS to more care delivered closer to home  

Greater digitally - enabled ACCESS to care

Improvement in access and outcomes  
for our patients

Improvement in population  
health outcomes

Some important strategies and plans underpin our clinical services strategy and our strategic objectives 
to develop the best people and deliver the best use of resources: 

People and Culture – Digital & Information - Estates and Capital Investment – Quality and Service 
Improvement – Research and Innovation – Communications and Engagement – Leadership and Governance

Our future is informed by the end of the 
predominance of the hospital as the response to 
ill health, the emergence of the local integrated 
system and a shared role in population health. 

Our commitment 
In 2025 we will lead the delivery of 
comprehensive integrated healthcare 
in Worcestershire providing the 
best possible patient experience 
and outcomes

Our strategy for clinical services is built around 
three strategy pillars that support our future 
within the local integrated care system and 
our strategic objectives to deliver the best local 
services, the best experience of care and the 
best outcomes. 

Our strategy pillars also support delivery of our 
four imperatives: care for people living with 
frailty, care at the end of life, high quality cancer 
care, improved access to care and the key aims 
of the evolving local integrated care system. 

Our Clinical Services Strategy

4. Our clinical services strategy at a glance

Page 19



16

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

We will have a blueprint for the 
ICS provider alliance and new 
integrated service models for 
frailty and long term conditions 
in place. 

We will have agreed an 
appropriately incentivised local 
funding and contracting model.

We will be implementing our 
Digital Patient Record.

We will be leading the ICS 
Provider Alliance.   

We will have in place 
comprehensive outcome 
- based integrated service 
delivery.  

We will have introduced 
more virtual access to care 
and shared access to patient 
information. 

We will be operating in a fully 
integrated care system.     

We will have a population 
health outcome focus.

We will have a fully embedded 
population health management 
approach. 

End of 2020/21 End of 2022/23 End of 2024/25

5. Our strategy plans and milestones
Our clinical services strategy will be the principal 
guide for the direction of our trust over the next 
five years. 

Given our challenges, as a minimum across our 
strategy pillars, we need to be where the best are 
already however we will seek to be at the leading 
edge of practice where the opportunity presents. 

We will continue to produce operational plans 
that have a 12-month view, which will provide 
the detail of the actions that we will take to 
implement our strategy each year. 

As a bridge between individual years and the 
desired 2025 position, we will develop a three-
year, mid-term plan, which will help us to plan 
and implement actions that require longer than 
12 months to deliver.

Integrated Care  
Milestones

Priority plans

 T As the largest single provider organisation 
in the Worcestershire and the STP, we will 
develop our leadership role in the provider 
alliance as the system moves towards an 
Integrated Care System, with alignment 
and engagement where practical with the 
Herefordshire Integrated Provider.

 T We will establish new more active relationships 
with the primary care networks and 
neighbourhood teams to support agreed 

clinically – led programmes of work. Priority 
programmes for integrated service delivery/
development and more care outside of 
hospital include:

 ö Frailty

 ö End of life care

 ö Diabetes

 ö Respiratory

 ö Cardiovascular disease

Page 20



17

We will have developed a 
sustainable model for our front 
door services at both acute sites 
including a PAU at WRH.  

The system will have in place 
a more comprehensive range 
of urgent care services co-
ordinated through a single 
point of access - reducing 
pressure on emergency hospital 
services.

We will have a delivered a new 
set of facilities supporting same 
day emergency care at the front 
door of WRH. 

There will be direct rapid access 
pathways supporting hyper 
acute care including stroke. PCI 
and AAA across the STP.

There will be new more 
generalist medical roles across 
the local system to support 
people who are frail and 
complex. 

There will be more ‘high 
street’ and ‘virtual’ options for 
accessing urgent care.  

There will be a greater 
integration of workforce across 
urgent and emergency care 
services.

There will be  more digitally - 
enabled ‘virtual’ care delivery 
across services.  

End of 2020/21 End of 2022/23 End of 2024/25

 T We will continue to develop and integrate 
acute and rehabilitation pathways e.g. the 
hip fracture pathway and stroke rehabilitation 
pathways with the aim of creating a single 
provider model for stroke care pathways in 
Worcestershire.

 T We will extend our partnership with 
Wye Valley NHS Trust to support service 
collaboration between clinical haematology 
services, renal services, interventional 
radiology, neurology and stroke care.

 T We will develop our phased approach to 
pathology networking across Herefordshire 
and Worcestershire first, then partner on 
a larger footprint to provide a sustainable 
volume of activity supported by networked 
service infrastructure and digital reporting 
systems.

 T We will continue to play a lead role in the 
Local Maternity System supporting plans for 
improving women’s choices and the outcomes 
of maternity care for mothers and babies.

Urgent & Emergency Care 
Milestones

Priority plans

 T We will work with our partners to develop 
and streamline the pathways for urgent 
and emergency care - reducing pressure on 
emergency hospital services. This will be 
coordinated through a single point of access 
and triage and capitalising on the growth in 
digital access solutions.

 T We will redesign our front door to ensure that 
we have the appropriate range of specialty 

assessment pathways with the right capacity 
to support rapid streaming from the ED. 
The default for assessment will be same 
day emergency care with support from GP 
Portfolio roles to work alongside specialty 
medical teams, more ambulatory continuing 
care options such as ‘hot’ clinics and rapid 
access to diagnostic services. 

Page 21



18

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

 T Building on our current frailty service 
development, we will have specialists in frailty 
management working across our front door 
areas from the start of admission as well as 
end of life care specialists. 

 T We will incorporate a broader range of support 
services at the front door such as primary care, 
mental health, and social support services.

 T We will develop an innovative, cross - county 
approach to sustaining two emergency 
departments and two undifferentiated 
acute takes 24/7; seven days a week at 
Worcestershire Royal Hospital and the 
Alexandra Hospital, requiring the collaboration 
of all our teams and support from the relevant 
training bodies. 

 T  We will redesign our medical staffing model 
and the balance of specialist and generalist 
roles to support continuity of care and seven 
day access to Consultant - led care for all 
admitted patients including those presenting 
with multiple morbidities. This may be a 
further area for the development of GP 
Portfolio roles. 

 T As the major emergency centre for the STP 
we will ensure the capacity at Worcestershire 
Royal Hospital to support rapid assessment, 
diagnosis and treatment pathways for 
patients requiring emergency cardiovascular 
intervention including stroke, primary coronary 
intervention and abdominal aortic aneurysm 
repair. We will ensure that we have the 
appropriate critical care capacity to support 
our major emergency workload at WRH. 

 T We will embed the principle of home first from 
the day of admission, though the development 
of the Onward Care Team approach and the 
integration and in reach of community teams 
into acute areas and across patient pathways, 
at the same time reducing the reliance on bed 
based onward care.

 T We will deliver the plans for the development 
of a full scale paediatric assessment unit 
at WRH whilst working with partners to 
understand the future demand and capacity 
for paediatric urgent and emergency care.  

Page 22



19

Acute And Specialist Planned Care
Milestones

We will have new countywide 
service delivery models in place 
for planned surgery at AGH 
and KTC.

We will be working in 
partnership with another 
specialist provider to deliver 
high quality, networked 
cancer care.

We will have reduced face to 
face outpatient consultations 
by 10%.

We will have optimised our 
elective capacity and begun to 
repatriate some activity from 
outside of the county.

We will have developed and 
optimised our countywide 
service models for high 
demand services such as 
Endoscopy and Ophthalmology 
and Urology and T&O.

We will have reduced face to 
face outpatient consultations 
by 20% .

We will have repatriated 
a broader range of 
elective activity back into 
Worcestershire.

Through our Worcestershire 
Strategic partnership 
arrangement we will have 
repatriated more specialised 
care back into Worcestershire.

We will have reduced face to 
face outpatient consultations 
by 30%.   

End of 2020/21 End of 2022/23 End of 2024/25

Priority plans

 T In line with our proposed site model, we will 
increase the number and complexity of surgical 
services delivered at the AH e.g. orthopaedics, 
breast, gynaecology, benign upper GI surgery, 
vascular, ambulatory trauma and the range of 
day case and short stay activity at KTC, with 
effective alignment of our capacity with our 
current and future demand for our services

 T We will modernise the outpatient service 
model adopting digital solutions to reduce 
the number of face to face consultations and 
optimise the pathways for follow up care, 
improving patient convenience and releasing 
skilled and senior clinician time 

 T Whilst we can build on the quality of our 
own existing major cancer teams, we cannot 
provide all our cancer services and other 

aspects of specialised care alone. Starting 
with oncology, urology and head and neck 
cancer, we will develop a strategic partnership 
for the delivery of these services with one or 
more provider of specialised care, aligned as 
appropriate with the regional radiotherapy 
operational delivery model and other strategic 
cancer service developments. 

 T We will plan for the appropriate capacity 
to meet the predicted increase in elective 
and emergency demand from an ageing 
population in key specialties such as 
T&O, Urology, Ophthalmology and 
Endoscopy including physical capacity and 
innovative service models and demand 
management solutions. 

Page 23



20

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

6. Enabling the clinical services strategy through  
 our underpinning strategic plans

The delivery of our clinical services strategy will be enabled by and will impact on a range of supporting 
plans. A summary of these implications is provided below as we start to develop their alignment with 
our clinical services strategy.

People, culture & organisational 
development

We need to develop a collaborative 
organisational culture. Our people will 
need to embrace new and different ways 
of working, including digital healthcare, 
working across sites and working outside 
of the hospital walls.  We need to be 
radical and to collaborate with partner 
organisations including education bodies 
to innovate in workforce supply, workforce 
composition, training and development 
to meet the changing service models and 
healthcare needs of our population. 

We need to support our workforce and 
the people that visit our hospitals with 
opportunities to improve health and 
wellbeing and act as advocates for health 
and wellbeing across Worcestershire.

Quality and service improvement
Our single improvement methodology will 
support alignment of improvement effort 
and ethos with the change ambitions in 
this clinical services strategy.  We need to 
develop our transformational capacity, skills 
and capabilities whilst at the same time 
ensuring that we use technology and data 
more effectively.

Research and innovation 
To support our clinical services strategy we 
need to develop our research and innovation 
capability to improve outcomes, attract the 
best staff and increase the organisation 
profile.  We will collaborate with local higher 
education institutions and local enterprise 
to support and develop our research and 
innovation ambitions.

Business intelligence

Health and care systems have historically 
been organised largely around provider 
characteristics, rather than population 
characteristics. We need to revolutionise our 
business intelligence to devise healthcare 
strategies tailored to the unique needs of 
the local population. 

Digital

Digital is the key driver of clinical change 
that will underpin and accelerate delivery of 
our clinical services strategy, supporting us 
to integrate care, streamline access to care, 
and develop expert patients. Our digital 
strategy is well developed and investment in 
this strategy is a priority for us.  

Page 24



21

Partnerships, communications and 
engagement
We propose a broad range of partners in 
our clinical service strategy from individual 
patients to large organisations and need 
to embrace partnership on every level as a 
resource intensive activity. 

We need to develop the aptitudes to 
support co-design and co-production 
and support greater agency and self – 
actualisation with our patients.

Estates

Our clinical services strategy has highlighted 
the fact that our issues are as much about 
capability as capacity, and digital solutions 
should further diminish the need for 
additional space. 

Our immediate capital investment priorities 
will be predicated on supporting new 
models of care at our front doors, diagnostic 
capacity to deliver earlier cancer diagnosis, 
rapid access pathways and same day 
emergency care.  

We need to develop a new strategy for 
capital investment through partnership with 
both the public and private sector. 

Finance
Our clinical services strategy will support us 
to target the drivers of the deficit by having 
the right mix and volume of services, having 
sustainable services models, stable and 
progressive staffing models and being clear 
about where to focus investment. 

Leadership and governance

We need to continue the approach of 
involving our clinical teams in the strategy 
development as it has been proven to 
increase engagement, and develop our 
capabilities around clinical leadership 
across boundaries with primary and 
tertiary partners. 

We will need to better align our governance 
with system and STP governance and 
improve the awareness of community 
services and integrated care aspirations.

Page 25



22

WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST       OUR CLINICAL SERVICES STRATEGY TO 2025

7. Conclusion 

This is a strategy for change: change in focus, 
change in approach, change in organisational 
identity, change in culture, change in workforce, 
change to services, how they are delivered and 
by whom, change in our relationships with our 
partners, patients and communities. Only with 
change on this scale can we meet the current 
and future challenges to the clinical and financial 
sustainability of our services. 

We need to make Worcestershire a great 
place not only to live but to work. We 
need to innovate in workforce supply and 
in technological solutions to support our 
workforce.

We need to ensure that the local system 
supports the right care in the right place with 
more people accessing the care they need in the 
places they live. 

Our hospitals need to be the preserve of those 
that are in need of acute specialist care that only 
the hospital can provide. 

If we are to truly manage demand, we need to 
garner and reshape our resources to support the 
health and not just the ill health needs of the 
local population.

Over the life of this clinical services strategy:

 T Our leadership will secure our rightful place 
in the new Integrated Care System

 T Our staff and patients will lead the way to 
a better local services and a better patient 
experience 

 T Our partners will work with us to deliver 
better access and better outcomes of care.

 

We will begin our journey to 2025 by intensively 
engaging our teams and our partners in this 
strategy for our services.

As we move to implementation we will build 
on our existing programmes of work, in urgent 
and emergency care and in planned acute and 
specialist care, to create plans that fully support 
the ambitions of this strategy.

We will also reach out to our colleagues in 
primary care and community services as we start 
to develop our plans to integrate care for local 
people which are at the heart of our strategy.

Page 26



Draft v4_24102019Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Developing our clinical services strategy

13 August 2019

Our Clinical Services Strategy  
to 2025

Putting Patients First

P
age 29



Our Trust Strategy

Putting Patients First

Our patients have told us 
they’d like services that:

• Are more joined up

• Are easier for patients to 
access and find their way 
around

• Provide better support for 
choice, decision - making, 
prevention and self-care

• Are as individual / 
responsive to a patient’s 
needs as possible 

P
age 30



The Context for our 
Clinical Services Strategy

The NHS Long Term Plan Jan 2019

• Delivering a new service model for the 21st century

➢Transform out of hospital care

➢Reduce pressure on emergency hospital services

➢More person-centered care with improved outcomes

➢Digitally enabled care

➢Better care for major health conditions

➢Prevention, population health and integrated care

P
age 31



Our Clinical Services
Strategy

• We have identified three key areas of activity that shape our 
future:

➢End to end integrated care

➢Comprehensive and responsive urgent and emergency care

➢High quality, dependable acute and specialist planned care

P
age 32



Our Clinical Services
Strategy at a Glance

P
age 33



Integrated Care 

A Hospital 
Without Walls  

P
age 34



Integrated Care  

• Priority plans for integration with primary and community care

➢ Care for people living with frailty

➢ End of life care 

➢ Care for diabetes and respiratory disease

• Priority plans for collaboration with secondary care (WVT)

➢ Stroke care and neurology  

➢ Clinical haematology  

➢ Renal disease  

➢ Interventional radiology and pathology  

• Our lead role in the H&W Local Maternity System 

P
age 35



Urgent and 
emergency care 

• Priority plans

➢ A single point of access / triage for all UEC options across the local system

➢ A full range of same day emergency care services supporting the front 
door of our hospitals with ‘home first’ embedded across all inpatient care

➢ Frailty and end of life care specialists supporting care at the front door -
reducing avoidable admission and supporting frailty care from the start of 
admission to reduce the risk of hospital acquired functional decline 

➢ More generalist roles vs specialist roles to care for those with multiple 
morbidities including a much expanded older people/ frailty workforce

➢ Direct, rapid assessment, diagnosis and treatment pathways for hyper 
acute care including stroke, PPCI and AAA

➢ A full scale paediatric assessment unit at WRH supporting the ED 

P
age 36



Acute and Specialist 
Planned Care  

Clear roles for our three hospital sites

Alexandra Hospital Redditch
– Local Acute Hospital

➢ Adult emergency department
➢ Adult acute medical services
➢ Centre for planned surgery and
➢ ambulatory trauma
➢ Diagnostic and other clinical support services
➢ Outpatient – based services

Worcestershire Royal Hospital
– Major Acute Hospital

➢ All age emergency department
➢ All age acute medical services
➢ Hyper-acute STP services
➢ Major and emergency surgery centre
➢ Inpatient trauma unit
➢ Consultant – led maternity and neonatal care
➢ Inpatient children and young people’s care
➢ Radiotherapy centre
➢ Diagnostic and other clinical support services
➢ Outpatient – based services 

Kidderminster Treatment Centre

➢Minor Injuries Unit
➢ Centre for day case and short stay surgery
➢Diagnostic centre
➢Outpatient – based services

P
age 37



Acute and Specialist 
Planned Care 

• Priority plans

➢ Increase the number and complexity of surgical services/procedures 
delivered at the AH e.g. orthopaedics, breast, gynaecology, benign upper 
GI surgery, vascular, ambulatory trauma

➢ Increase the range of day case / short stay activity at KTC

➢ Modernise the outpatient service model adopting digital solutions to 
reduce face to face consultations and working in partnership to optimise 
pathways for follow up care

➢ Develop a strategic partnership with a specialised  provider for cancer 
and other specialised service delivery, initially for oncology, urology and 
head and neck cancer. 

➢ Plan for the appropriate capacity to meet the predicted increase in 
elective demand from an ageing population e.g. cancer and other life 
limiting conditions, ophthalmology and T&O

P
age 38



A Strategy 
for Sustainability  

Our Clinical Services Strategy is designed to:  

• Tackle, in partnership, the most significant challenges to health and to the 
sustainability of our local healthcare system and improve outcomes 

• ‘Right size’ our hospital services and our workforce and redress the current 
imbalance between acute specialist care and sub - acute care delivered from 
our hospital beds. 

• Transform our approach to a sustainable workforce underpinned by our 
ambitious digital strategy.

• Put in place plans that will support continuous sustainable improvement to 
the quality and safety of services.

• Unlock the systemic issues that are the root cause of our access and 
performance problems and dramatically improve the responsiveness of the 
services we provide.

• Lead the way in changing risky behaviours within the population through a 
variety of touchpoints and by making ‘every contact count’.

P
age 39



Taking our Strategy 4ward

We will begin our journey to 2025 by intensively engaging our teams and our 
partners in this strategy for our services:

• Internal:

– All staff November 2019

– Specialty workshop in January 2020

• External:

– Integrated Care System partners  

– HOSC, Healthwatch and PPFs

• We are building our year one priorities into our 2020/21 annual business plan 
and these will also be reflected in our contract negotiations with our 
commissioners

P
age 40



Thank you for listening

and for engaging with us – please 
have your say:

wah-tr.haveyoursay@nhs.net

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 7  
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
27 JANUARY 2020

BUDGET SCRUTINY: IN-YEAR PERFORMANCE AND DRAFT 
2020/21 BUDGET AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 
UPDATE 2020-22 FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Summary

1. As part of the Council's development of the 2020/21 budget, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels and the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) are 
considering the 2020/21 draft budget at their meetings in January. 

2. The findings of the HOSC’s discussion will contribute to Overview and Scrutiny's 
overall response to the budget, which is being co-ordinated by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Performance Board (OSPB) and will form part of the Board's meeting on 29 
January 2020.

3. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Health and Wellbeing has been 
invited to this meeting, along with the Interim Director for Public Health, the Chief 
Financial Officer and the Head of Finance.

Budget Consultation Process

4. The Council's draft budget for 2020/21 was approved for consultation by Cabinet 
on 20 December 2019 and is attached at Appendix 1.  Following consultation, the 
draft budget for 2020/21 will be reconsidered by Cabinet on 30 January before being 
presented for approval by full Council on 13 February 2020.  

5. Areas of the budget report which are relevant to this panel have been 
summarised and included in the form of presentation slides which can be found at 
Appendix 2. 

6. The aim of the January Overview and Scrutiny discussions of the draft budget is 
to inform the budget consultation process. The Chairmen of each scrutiny body will 
share feedback with the Overview and Scrutiny Board and comments on the budget 
proposals will then be submitted to Cabinet and Council.

Draft 2020/21 Budget

7. The report to Cabinet provides a first assessment of the 2020/21 precept need, 
an update on the Medium-Term Financial Plan and the Council’s budget for 2020/22.
The main body of the report includes detail on gross expenditure incurred annually 
by the Council and outturn figures for the current budget year 2019/20. The Council’s 
Medium-Term Financial Plan and how it plans to fund its priorities is set out, 

Page 43



Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

including detail on challenges, funding pressures, Government grants and council 
tax. 

8. The proposed budget for 2020/21 includes the need for £9.6million of proposals 
to balance the budget. The report therefore provides details about proposed areas 
for investment, as well as proposed efficiencies, reform and income proposals.

9. The Committee’s attention is also drawn to the report appendices which include 
service budget summaries, proposals for efficiencies reform and income, and the 
capital programme, reserves and assessment of risks.

Performance and In-Year Budget Monitoring

10. During 2019 regular performance and budget monitoring information has been 
introduced into Scrutiny Panel agendas, and more recently for HOSC, which, moving 
forward, will be advantageous to scrutiny of the budget. 

11. The latest performance information available relates to July to September 2019 
and was considered by the HOSC at its meeting on at 25 November 2019 Panel, and 
an update on the Public Health Ring-fenced Grant was also provided. 

12. https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=141

13. The financial information relates to Period 8 and the detail has been provided in 
the form of presentation slides, which can be found at Appendix 3.

Purpose of the Meeting

14. The HOSC is asked to:

 review the 2020/21 draft budget as presented to Cabinet on 20 December 
2019;

 agree any comments which the HOSC Chairman will contribute to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board's response to consultation on the 
2020/21 budget on 29 January 2020.

Supporting Information

Appendix 1 – Appendix 1 – Cabinet Report - 20 December 2019; 2020/21 Draft Budget 
and Medium-Term Financial Plan Update 2020-22 (paper copies circulated to Panel 
Members only)
Appendix 2 – Budget 2020/21 information relevant to this panel (Presentation Slides)
Appendix 3 - Budget Monitoring Information (Presentation Slides)

Contact Points

Specific Contact Points for this Report
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Page 44

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=141
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=131&MId=2648&Ver=4
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk


Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of 
this report:

 Agenda and Minutes of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 25 
November, available on the website: 
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=
2735&Ver=4

 Agenda and Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board on 28 
November 2019 – available on the website:
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=13
4

 Agenda and Minutes of Cabinet on 20 December 2019 – available on the 
website:https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Committ
eeId=131

Page 45

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=2735&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=2735&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=134
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=134
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=131
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=131


This page is intentionally left blank



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

1

2020/21 Draft Budget
for consultation

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

27 January 2020

P
age 47



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

2

Draft 2020/21 Budget

P
age 48



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

3

PROPOSALS INCLUDE £9.6 million SAVINGS:

✓ Continuing to Reshape, reform and redesign the Council of the
future £6.0 million

✓ Continuing our Commercial contracts review £1.4 million

✓ Review provider service and demand in Adult Care to reduce
costs £1.3 million

✓ Additional income mainly grants £0.9 million

Achieving a balanced budget in 2019/20

Full Analysis at Appendix 1C

P
age 49



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

4

2% - ring-fenced for Adult Social Care services in order to 
contribute to existing cost pressures due to Worcestershire’s 
ageing population

1.99% - to provide financial support for the delivery of 
outcomes in the line with our plan for the County ‘Shaping 
Worcestershire’s Future’ 

An increase of 3.99% which is less than £1 per week for a 
band D householder

Worcestershire will remain in the lower quartile for level of 
Council Tax for comparable councils

Council Tax 2020/21

P
age 50



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

5Council Tax benchmarked

P
age 51



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

Our Reserves

✓General Fund - £12.2 million
• Appendix 3 Risk Assessment

• No plans to add or reduce

✓ Earmarked Reserves - £61.8 million 
• In Line with our Corporate Plan priorities

• Section 12 analysis and commentary – Table 17

• Financial Risk reserve used in part 2019/20 but 
unlikely to call on in 2020/21

6

P
age 52



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

7

The next three years

P
age 53



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

8

Budget Planning Timeline for 2020/21

Throughout 
2020

Lobbying 
Government 

on FFR

March 
onwards

Implement 
savings

13th

February 
2020

Council Sets 
Budget

30th January 
2020

Proposed Draft 
Budget Cabinet

Early January 
2020

Likely 
Provisional 
Settlement

January 2020

Consultation, 
including 
Scrutiny

20th December 
2019

Cabinet

P
age 54



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

2020/21 Budget relevant to Health

• Public Health Budgets need to be inflated to take account of 
pay inflation and contract inflation (where applicable) 

• Assumes no increase in Public Health Ring Fenced Grant 
(PHRFG) as the value of any increase has yet to be confirmed

• Public Health now has a net revenue budget due to the Section 
75 commissioned services which transferred from Children’s 
Services (page 17 Table 4), namely
• CAHMS
• Worcestershire Health and Care Trust Contracts 
• Young Carers Project

• Element of reserve funding available for public health related 
activities of c£6.2m (page 40 Table 18 and Appendix 2)

• Full breakdown of use of PHRFG to be included within the 
January Cabinet report 

P
age 55



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

2020/21 Growth relevant to Health

• £242k of additional funding to cover additional posts 
within Trading Standards (page 48 Appendix 1B) 
which will be the first call on any increase in PHRFG 
grant funding 

• Inflation and any additional investment required 
which is not able to be funded by the grant increase 
will be funded from the earmarked reserve, subject to 
approval by the DPH and CFO

P
age 56



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

Further allocations from PHRFG to reduce base budget 

Details at Appendix 1C

2020/21 Report Reference

£m

Trading Standards – funding of existing staff

Adult Learning

Coroners & Registrars

Adults & Children’s (from 19/20) Commissioning

Employee Well Being

Positive Activities – additional allocation

0.175

0.211

0.130

0.060

0.160

0.065

E&I5, Page 51

COACH8, Page 53

COACH8, Page 53

DAS5, Page 54

COACH8, Page 53

COACH8, Page 53

0.801

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel

27 January 2020

Period 8 2019/20 
Financial Update

P
age 59



www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

P8 Forecasted Position – Public Health

BUDGET HEADING
BUDGET 

19/20

FORECAST 

19/20
VARIANCE

£'000 £'000 £'000

PH Strategic Functions 2,405 2,393 -12

Adults Prevention Services 12,772 12,709 -63

Childrens Prevention Services 10,587 11,097 510

Wider Council Delivered Services 1,912 2,262 350

Reserves 684 -102 -785

Total Expenditure 28,360 28,360 0

PH Grant -28,360 -28,360 0

Total Income -28,360 -28,360 0

TOTAL PHRFG 0 0 0

A full breakdown of areas which this budget covers was included in the HOSC report on the 
following agenda Monday, 25th November, 2019,

P
age 60

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=2735&Ver=4


www.worcestershire.
gov.uk

Key Headlines – Public Health

Two main areas of additional spend which will be funded 
from the grant and small use of reserves this year

• Children’s Preventative services 
• Continuation of funding for Children’s Development Centres 

• Social Mobility Project  

• Partially offset by saving on 0-19 contract 

• Wider Council Services 
• Agreement to fund Trading Standards activities from PHRFG

• Additional Contribution to the Advocacy Contract 

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  AGENDA ITEM 8 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JANUARY 2020

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ROUND-UP 

Summary

1. To receive a round-up of information on:
 County Council activities in relation to health
 District Council activities in relation to health
 NHS Board meetings
 Consultations in Worcestershire
 Urgent health issues in Worcestershire; and
 Items for future meetings of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Background

2.   In order to ensure that Members of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(HOSC) are fully informed about issues relating to health scrutiny in Worcestershire, 
communication will be essential.  To assist in this, an item will be placed on the agenda for 
each meeting of the HOSC to consider consultations, County Council activities, District 
Council activities, urgent health issues arising in Worcestershire and future agenda items. 
Regard for the Council’s statutory requirements in relation to access to information will be 
critical.

County Council Activities in Relation to Health

3. A range of County Council services can impact upon and also be impacted upon by 
health services.  Recognising that the health-related work of the County Council will be 
of interest to the District Councillors on the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, an 
oral update on such activities, and on other matters the Chairman has been involved in, 
will be provided at each meeting by the Committee Chairman at each HOSC.

District Council Activities in Relation to Health

4. The statutory power of health scrutiny, including the power to require an officer of a 
local NHS body to attend before the Council, rests with the County Council.  However, it 
is recognised that a number of District Councils within Worcestershire are undertaking 
work in relation to local health issues, under their duty to promote the economic, social 
or environmental well-being of their area.

5. Recognising that the work of the District Councils will be of value and interest to the 
wider HOSC, an oral update will be provided on such activities by District Councillors at 
each meeting of the HOSC.

Page 63



Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

NHS Board Meetings

6. To help HOSC Members to keep up to date and maintain their knowledge of health 
issues around the County, it was agreed that a 'Lead Member/s' would be identified for 
each of the local NHS bodies to attend their Board Meetings and then provide an oral 
update at each HOSC.  

Consultations in Worcestershire

7. The HOSC has a duty to respond to local Health Trusts' consultations on any 
proposed substantial changes to local health services.  An oral update will be provided 
at each meeting of the HOSC on both developments relating to consultations previously 
undertaken and forthcoming consultations.

Urgent Health Issues in Worcestershire

8. Worcestershire County Council's constitution makes provision for urgent items to be 
considered.  Standing Order 12.2 specifies that the Chairman of the HOSC “may bring 
before the meeting and cause to be considered an item of business not specified in the 
summons or agenda where the Chairman is of the opinion, by reason of special 
circumstances (which shall be specified in the minutes) that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency”. 

9. Additionally, Standing Order 9.4.2 allows for the Chairman of the HOSC at any time 
to call a special meeting of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Standing 
Order 9.4.3 allows for at least one quarter of the members of the HOSC to requisition a 
special meeting of the HOSC.  Such a requisition must be in writing, be signed by each 
of the Councillors concerned, identify the business to be considered and be delivered to 
the Director of Commercial and Change.  In accordance with Access to Information 
Rules, the Council must give five clear days' notice of any meeting. 

Items for Future Meetings

10. It is necessary that the HOSC's ability to react to emerging health issues in a timely 
manner and the public’s expectation of this is balanced against Worcestershire County 
Council’s statutory duty to ensure that meetings and issues to be considered are open 
and transparent and meet legislative requirements.  This agenda item must not be used 
to raise non-urgent issues.  Any such issues should be raised with the Scrutiny Team at 
least two weeks in advance of a scheduled meeting of the HOSC.

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel; 01905 844964 / 844965
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the Proper Officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance) the following are the background papers relating to this report:

 Worcestershire County Council Procedural Standing Orders, May 2017 which can 
be accessed here

Page 64

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/downloads/download/57/worcestershire_councty_councils_constitution
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/downloads/download/57/worcestershire_councty_councils_constitution


AGENDA ITEM 9  
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JANUARY 2020

WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

Summary

1. From time to time the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) will 
review its work programme and consider which issues should be investigated as a 
priority.

Background

2. Worcestershire County Council has a rolling annual Work Programme for 
Overview and Scrutiny.  The 2019/20 Work Programme has been developed by 
taking into account issues still to be completed from 2018/19, the views of Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel and HOSC Members and the findings of the budget scrutiny 
process.

3. Suggested issues have been prioritised using scrutiny feasibility criteria in order 
to ensure that topics are selected subjectively and the 'added value' of a review is 
considered right from the beginning.

4. The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutiny of:

 Local NHS bodies and health services (including public health and children’s 
health)

5. The current Work Programme was agreed by Council on 12 September 2019.

Dates of Future Meetings

 24 March 2020
 27 May 2020
 20 July 2020
 23 September 2020
 16 November 2020

Purpose of the Meeting

6. The HOSC is asked to consider the 2019/20 Work Programme and agree 
whether it would like to make any amendments.  The HOSC will need to retain the 
flexibility to take into account any urgent issues which may arise from substantial 
NHS service changes requiring consultation with HOSC.

Page 65



Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 January 2020

Supporting Information

Appendix – Health Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2019/20

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of 
this report:

 Agenda and minutes of Council on 12 September 2019 – available on the Council 
website here

 Agenda and Minutes of OSPB on 24 July 2019 - available on the Council website 
here

Page 66

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2636&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=2790&Ver=4


Appendix 1

2019/20 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME: Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting  Issue for Scrutiny Date of Last Report Notes/Follow-up
Action

27 January 2020 Sustainable Transformation Partnership and the 
NHS Long-term Plan

5 March 2019

27 January 2020 Budget Scrutiny: In-Year Performance and Draft 
2020/21 Budget and Medium-Term Financial Plan 
Update 2020-22 for Public Health Budget Services

  25 November 2019

27 January 2020 Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust Clinical 
Services Strategy

8 October 2019

24 March 2020 Performance and In-Year Finance Monitoring (Public 
Health Services)

27 January 2020

20 July 2020 Effectiveness of vaccination schemes

Task Group being 
scoped

Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services 
(CAMHS)

Task Group

TBC Access to GP Services 5 April 2017
TBC New development and how this is factored into 

NHS plans for the future (could link with Access to 
GP Services)

TBC Mental Health (all age groups)
Mental Health Care waiting times

TBC Update on proposal to form one NHS CCG
TBC Recruitment and development of staff in the health 

sector
TBC Visit - Worcestershire Integrated Sexual Health 

(WISH) service
Ongoing West Midlands Ambulance Service Annual Update 27 June 2019
Ongoing Substantial NHS Service Changes requiring 

consultation with HOSC

P
age 67



Ongoing Quality and Performance of the Acute Hospitals 
(including capacity and preparations for winter 
pressures) 

9 April 2019
26 November 2018
5 July 2018
27 January 2018

Ongoing Public Health (holding the Health and Wellbeing 
Board to account as appropriate and specifically 
updates on smoking cessation and funding 
arrangements)

25 November 2019

Ongoing STP - ongoing workstreams (including updates on 
Neighbourhood Teams and Maternity Systems) / 
communication strategies / structure and 
governance (balance between the 2 Counties) / 
role of community hospitals / capital programme / 
capacity 

November 2018 (member 
briefing)
29 January 2018

Standing Items Performance Monitoring (Public Health)
Budget Scrutiny Process (jointly with Adult O&S 
Panel)
HOSC Round-up
Quality Accounts

Jan/March/July/Sept/Nov

P
age 68


	Agenda
	5 Sustainable Transformation Partnership and the NHS Long Term Plan
	6 Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust Clinical Services Strategy - Update
	Item 6 Acute Services Strategy Appendix 1 Strategy
	Item 6 Acute Clinical Strategy Appendix 2 slides

	7 Budget Scrutiny: In-Year Performance and Draft 2020/21 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan Update 2020-22 for Public Health
	Item 7 Budget scrutiny - Appendix 2 Budget slides
	Item 7 Budget Scrutiny Appendix 3 - Finance P8

	8 Health Overview and Scrutiny Round-up
	9 Work Programme 2019/20
	Item 9 Work Programme 2019-20 Appendix 1


